
FINANCIAL INDUSTRY REGULATORY AUTHORITY
LETTER OF ACCEPTANCE, WAIVER AND CONSENT

NO. 2? 1 ?04?08760 1

TO: Department of Enforcemem
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (''FINRA")

RE: Christopher R. Hickman, Rcspondcnt
Oencral Securities Repmscnlative
CRD No. 3267599

Pursuant to FINRA Rule 9216 ofFINRA's Code of Procedure, Christopher R. Hickmun

(?Hickman" cir URespondcnl"). submits this Letter of Acceptance, Waiver and Consent (''AWC")
for the purpo?e of proposing a settlement ofthe alleged rule violations described below. This
AWC i? submitted on the condition that, if accepted, FINRA will not bring any future actions

against Respondent alleging violations based on the sanw factual findings J?Bcrii?eJ hen:in.

L

ACCEPTANCE AND CONSENT

A, I hereby accept and consent, without admitting or denying the findings. and solcl>

for the purposes of this procceding and any other proceeding brought by or un
behalrof FINRA, or to which FINRA isu party, priorto a hearing and without itn
adjudication ofany issue of law or fact, to the entry ofthc following findings by

FiNRA:

BACKGROUND

ln 2001, Hickman first became registered with FINRA as a General Securities
Representative. Between Scptcmber 2009 and July 2,2015. Hickman was
mgislemd in this capacity thmugh Cetera Advisors LLC (CRD No. 10299). On
July 2,2015, Cetera filed a Form U5 disclosing that Hickman was terminated lor
*'frequent short term fixed-income securities trading in customer accounts under
Firm review."

Hickman is not pmsently associated with a FINRA mcmber firm, but remains
subject to FINRA's jurisdiction pursuant to Article V, Section 4 of the FINRA
By-Laws.

RELEVANT ?SC?PL?NARY HISTORY

l lickman has no formal disciplinary history with the Se?lrities and Exchange

Commission, any self-regulatory organization or any state securities re?ulalor.



OVERVIEW

Between May 2011 and April 2014 (the "Relevant Period"), Hickman engaged

in an unsuitabk pattern of short-term trading of Unit Invcatment Trusts

(''UITs") in six customer accounts. Based on the foregoing, Hickman violated
NASD Rule 23 IO and FINRA Rules 2ll l and 2010.

FACTS AND VIOLATIVE CONDUCT

During the Relevant Period, Hickman engaged in an unsuitable pattern of short-
term trading o?UITs in six customers' accounts.

UITs are investment companies that offer shares ofa fixed portfolio of securities
in a one-?me public offering, and terminate on a specified date. As such, they are
not designed to be used as trading vehicles. In addition, UITs typically carry
slgnificant upfront charges, and as with mutual fl?nds that carry frunt-end sales
charges, short-term trading of UITs is prcsumptively improper.

During the Relevant Period, in connection with six customers' accounts, Hickman
repeatedly,-:- 

--- 1-I that the customers purchase UITs and ?hen sell these
products within a year of purchase. The Urrs that Hickman 

-- --- -- -'- ' had
maturity dates of24 months or longer and c?lied sales charges of up to 3.95%.
Nevertheless, on dozens ofoc?msions, Hickman recommended that his customers
sell their UIT positions less than a year after purchase. Indeed, the average
holding period for the UITs purchased in these six customers' accounts was just
136 daysi. In addition. on several occasions, Hickman recommended thot his
customers use the proceeds from the short-term sale ofa UIT to purchase another
UIT with similar or even identical invcstmerit objectives. As aresult of thcsL
transactions, the six customers at issue mgcmd losses ofapproximately
Sl 15,989.75.

Based on the foregoing, Hickman violated NASD Rule 23 IO and 1:INRA Rules
2111 and 2010.?

B. laIso cor?cnt to thc impositionofthe  followingsanctions:

. A fine of $5,000; and

? A suspension rrom association with any FINRA mcmbcr in all capacities
for five months; and

0 Restitution to the customers listed on Schedule A hereto in the total
amount of $115,989.75, plus interest.

The fine shall be due and payable either immediately upon reassociation with a

' ?INRA Rule 2 1 I I replaced NASD Rule 2310 on ?uly 9.2012.
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member firm, or prior to any application or request for relief from any statutory
disqualification  resulting from this or any other cvcnt or proceeding, whichever is
earlier.

Restitution is ordered to be paid to the customers listed on Attachment A hereto in
the total amount of $1 I 5,989.75, plus interest at the rate set forth in Section
6621(a)(2) ofthe Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C. 6621(aX2), from May 2011

until the date ofpayment. Restilution amounts ordered. pursuant to this
disciplinary action, arc due and payable immediately upon massociation with a
member firm, or prior to any application or request for relief from any statutory
disqualification  resulting from this or any other event or proceeding, whichever is
earlier. Thc imposition ofa rcstilution ordcr or any other monetary sanction
herein. and the timing ofsuch ordered payments, does not preclude customers
from pursuing their own actions to obtain restitution or other remedies. if for any
reason Respondent cannot locate any customer identified in Attachment A after
reasonable and documented efforts within such period, or such additional period
agrccd to by the stafT, Respondcnt shall forward any undistributcd rcstitu?ion and
interest to the appropriate escheat, unclaimed property, or abandoned property
fund for the statc in which the customer is last known to have residcd.

1 specifically and voluntarily waive any right to claim that 1 am unable to pay,
now or at any time hereafter, the monetary sanctions imposed in this matter.

I understand that if I am barrcd or suspended from associating with any F?NRA
member, 1 become subject to a statutory disqualification as that term is defined in
Article III, Section 4 ofFINRA's By-Laws, incorporating Section 3(ax39) ofthe
Securities Exchange Acl of 1 934. Accordingly, I may not be associated with any
FINRA member in any capacity, including clerical or ministerial functions, during
the period of the bar or suspension (?g FINRA Rules 8310 and 8311).

The sanctions imposed herein shull be effective on a date set by FINRA s?ufl.

L

WAIVER OF PROCEDURAL RIGHTS

1 specifically and voluntarily waive the following rights granted under FINRA's Code of
Procedure:

A, To have a Complaint issued spccifying the allegations against me;

B. To be notified of the Complaint and have the opportunity to answer ?hc

allegations in writing;
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C. ro defend against the allegations in a disciplinary hearing before a hearing pancl,

to have a written record ofthe hearing made and to havea written decision issucd:

and

D. To appeal any such decision to the National Adjudicatory Council ("NAC") and

then to the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and a U.S. Court of
Appeals.

Further, 1 specifically and voluntarily waive any right to claim bias or prejudgment ol' the Chief
Legal Officer, the NAC, or any membcr ofthe NAC, in connection with such person's or body's
participation in discussions mgarding the terms and conditions ofthis AWC, or other
consideration of this AWC, including acceptancc or rejection of this AWC.

1 further specifically and voluntarily waive any right to claim that a person violated the ex parte
prohibitions of FINRA Rule 9143 orlhe separation offunctions prohibiti?ms of F/NRA Rule

9144, in connection with such person's or body's participation in discussions regarding the terms
and conditions of this AWC, or other consideration ofthis AWC, including its ucccptance or
rejection.

ili.

OTHER MATI'ERS
l understand thal:

A. Submission of this AWC is voluntary and will not resolve this matter unless and

until it has been reviewed and accepted by the NAC, a Rcviev? Subcommittee ol
the NAC. or the Office of Disciplinary Affairs (??ODA"), pursuant ?o FINRA Rule
92/6;

B. If this AWC is not accepted, its submission will not be used as evidence ?o prove
any ol the allegations against me; and

C. Ifacceptcd:

1. this AWC will become part of' my pcrmanent disciplinary mcord and may
be considered in any future actions brought by FINRA or any other
regulator against me;

2. this AWC will be made available through FINRA's public disclosure

program in accordance with FlNRA Rule 8313;

3. FINRA may make a public announcement concerning this agreement and
the subject matter thereof in accordance with F?NRA Rule 8313;
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4. 1 may not takc any action or make or pennit to be made any public
statement, including in regulatory filings orothcnvise, denying, direcily or
indirectly, any finding in this AWC or create the impression thai the AWC
is without factual basis. 1 may not take any position In any pr?ceedinlt
brought by oren behalf of FINRA? or to which FINRA is a party, that is
inconsistent with any part of this AWC. Nothing in this provision alli:Cts

my: (i) tcstlmonial obligations; or (ii) right to take legal or factual

positions in litigation or other legal proceedings in which FINRA is not u
p?rty; and

D. 1 may attach a Corrwlive Action Statement to this AWC thal ibi a statement of
demonslrablc cormctlvc steps taken to pr?vcnl future misconduct. t underslmld
thal 1 may not deny the charges or make any statement that is inconsistent with
the AWC in this Statement. This Statement does not constitute l?ctu?l ur ?cgul

Iindinp by FINRA, nor does it reflect the views of FiNRA or its sian.

l certify thal 1 have mad and understand all oflhe provisions of this AWC and have been given a
full opportunity to ask questions about it; and that no of?er, threat, lnduccmcnt, or promise ofany
kind, Mher ?han the tenns set forth herein and the ?,u?peui of avoiding the is?u?nie of a
Complaint, has been made to induce me lo submit it.

06/.7/17
LSEGETELGIBI,TGJI-----

Date (mm/dd/yyyy) Christopher R. Hickman

Reviewed by.

CBDQESS<0
Carl F. Schoeppl, Esq.
Sohoeppl Law, P,A.
4651 North I'ederal Highway
Boca Raton. Florida 33431-5133
Telephone: (561) 39+8301
Facsimile: (561) 39+3?21
E-mail: carl@sch?eppllaw.com
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Acc:opted by FINRA:

June 9, 2017 Signed on behalf or the /
Du?e 

* 
Director ofODA. b? dele?ted uuthority

L.D=?FV 

1.m.i,w---
David F. Newman' ' ?/V?

Senior Re*ional Counsel
FrNRA Department ot Enforcement
1 60 1 Market Street. Suite 2700
Philadelphia, PA 19103

Tel: (215) 209-7028
Fax: (215) 209-7022
1:-Mail: david.newman(gfinmorg

8



ATTACHMENTA
AWC NO, 2015046087601

CUS?OMERINITIALS AMOUNTOFRESTITUTION
G.L. S54.568.15

R.C. $15,430.98

M.S. $19?350.17

LJ. & F.Z. $13,463.22

PJ. $13,177.23

Tur?L $115?989.75




